

EXHIBIT 1
PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS
OF THE
LICENSE MINOR REVISION



STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
STATE HOUSE STATION 17 AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333

DEPARTMENT ORDER
IN THE MATTER OF

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE)	SOLID WASTE ORDER
STATE PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

Pursuant to the provisions of the *Maine Hazardous Waste, Septage and Solid Waste Management Act*, 38 M.R.S.A. §§1301 to 1319-Y; and the *Solid Waste Management Rules: General Provisions*, 06-096 CMR 400 (last amended July 20, 2010) and *Landfill Siting, Design and Operation*, 06-096 CMR 401 (last amended July 20, 2010), the Department of Environmental Protection ("Department") has considered the application of THE STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE PLANNING OFFICE ("SPO") with its supportive data, staff review comments, and other related materials on file and FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS:

1. APPLICATION SUMMARY

- A. Application: SPO has applied for a minor revision to Department license #S-020700-WD-N-A, dated April 9, 2004 and affirmed by the Board of Environmental Protection ("BEP") on October 21, 2004, which approved a vertical increase in the licensed footprint of the West Old Town Landfill, now known as the Juniper Ridge Landfill, and the disposal of additional waste streams in the landfill.
- B. History: James River Paper Company, Inc. received approval (Department license #S-020700-7A-A-N) from the BEP on July 28, 1993 to construct and operate a new secure landfill, called the West Old Town Landfill ("WOTL" or "the landfill"), for the pulp and papermaking residuals generated at its Old Town mill. James River Paper Company, Inc. became Fort James Operating Company ("Fort James") in 1997; in November 2000, Fort James was acquired by Georgia-Pacific Corporation ("GPC"). On October 21, 2003, the Department issued conditional approval for the transfer of licenses for the WOTL from Fort James to the SPO (Department licenses #S-020700- WR-M-T and #L-019015-TH-C-T); the transfer became effective when the sale of the landfill to SPO occurred on February 5, 2004. On February 5, 2004, SPO also finalized an Operating Services Agreement with NEWSME Landfill Operations, LLC ("NEWSME"), a subsidiary of Casella Waste Systems, Inc.

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE	2	SOLID WASTE ORDER
PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

("CWS"), for the operation of the WOTL. On April 9, 2004, the Department approved the amendment application (Department license #S-020700-WD-N-A) for a vertical increase in the final elevation of the landfill and the disposal of additional waste streams ("the amendment license"). This license was appealed to the BEP by 2 parties: We the People and Paul C. Schroeder. We the People's appeal included a request for an adjudicatory public hearing. On July 15, 2004, the BEP voted to deny We the People's request for a public hearing. On October 21, 2004, the BEP voted to dismiss the 2 appeals of the amendment license, and to affirm the amendment license. The 2 appellants appealed the BEP's affirmation of the amendment license to the Penobscot County Superior Court; on March 1, 2006, Justice Andrew Mead signed an order denying the appeals and Mr. Schroeder's request to supplement the record.

The WOTL is now known as the Juniper Ridge Landfill ("Juniper Ridge"). The Operating Services Agreement states, in part, that NEWSME is responsible for all costs associated with operating the landfill, and for obtaining any permits needed. As explained in Finding of Fact #3 of the amendment license, references to the applicant in licenses for construction or operation of JRL refers to both SPO, and CWS or NEWSME (or a subsequent operator). Solid waste is currently disposed in cell 5 of the landfill, and construction of cell 6 will be completed during the 2010 construction season.

- C. Summary of Proposal: The applicant now requests to modify condition #16.C of the amendment license, which placed an annual total limit of 310,000 tons on the amount of unprocessed municipal solid waste ("MSW") accepted by the Maine Energy Recovery Company ("Maine Energy") incinerator in Biddeford, Maine plus the unprocessed MSW bypassed by Maine Energy to Pine Tree Landfill in Hampden, Maine and Juniper Ridge. The request is described in an application prepared by NEWSME; the application is dated October 3, 2006 with a significant modification to the proposal submitted on December 10, 2009.

2. REQUEST TO INCREASE LICENSE LIMIT

- A. Background information: Condition #16 of the amendment license addresses the sources and amount of MSW allowed to be disposed in

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE	3	SOLID WASTE ORDER
PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

Juniper Ridge; Condition #16.C of the amendment license contains the quantity restriction. Condition #16 reads as follows:

- “16. With regards to the acceptance of MSW for disposal, consistent with its proposal, the applicant:
 - A. shall not dispose of unprocessed MSW from any source other than bypass from the following sources: PERC incinerator in Orrington and the Maine Energy incinerator in Biddeford; waste delivered under an interruptible contract with PERC; or waste delivered in excess of processing capacity at other MSW incinerators in Maine;
 - B. shall not accept waste from an incinerator without verifiable authorization from either the owner/operator of an incinerator or from a regulatory entity with jurisdiction over the incinerator that a bypass has been called or, for holders of interruptible contracts, the contracts have been interrupted in accordance with the contractual provisions;
 - C. shall limit the total amount of (a) unprocessed MSW incinerated at Maine Energy and (b) MSW bypassed from Maine Energy for disposal at the WOTL and at Pine Tree Landfill’s Secure ill Landfill Expansion to no more than 310,000 tons in any calendar year, unless changes in conditions or circumstances occur that cause the Department to revise this cap; and
 - D. shall notify the Department if waste deliveries in excess of processing capacity at MSW incinerators continue from a particular incinerator for a period exceeding 1 week, and provide such information as the Department may request demonstrate that the deliveries are due to either planned outages or unplanned production problems.”

The quantity limit was originally proposed by CWS to address concerns about the possibility that Maine Energy, a subsidiary of CWS, would accept, and subsequently bypass, waste considerably in excess of its capacity. The 310,000 tons per year was based on Maine Energy’s

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE	4	SOLID WASTE ORDER
PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

estimate in its early talks with its user municipalities that 310,000 tons per year was the maximum amount of MSW Maine Energy could process and incinerate in a year. The 310,000 tons per year limit is shared between Maine Energy, Pine Tree Landfill and Juniper Ridge; no more than 310,000 tons of unprocessed MSW may be divided between the 3 facilities in any year. On December 31, 2009, Pine Tree Landfill, also a CWS subsidiary, ceased the acceptance of waste for disposal; the closure of Pine Tree Landfill is expected to be complete by the end of 2010. Thus, the 310,000 tons annual limit now applies only to Juniper Ridge and Maine Energy.

- B. Initial Request to Increase License Limit: CWS stated that since the issuance of the amendment license, Maine Energy has progressively improved its waste handling capacity through several equipment upgrades, resulting in Maine Energy being able to process and incinerate more of the MSW delivered to the incinerator and needing to bypass less MSW to a landfill. CWS noted that curtailment of incoming waste volume to ensure the 310,000 tons per year limit was not exceeded could potentially adversely affect power production by Maine Energy. The applicant requested that the limit be increased to 325,000 tons per year, primarily to address the improvements in boiler efficiency and availability at Maine Energy that allow Maine Energy to process and combust more MSW while bypassing fewer tons of MSW to Juniper Ridge.

- C. Modified Request to Increase License Limit: On December 10, 2009, the applicant modified its request for an increase to the 310,000 tons limit on MSW incinerated at Maine Energy and/or bypassed for disposal at Juniper Ridge. The modification was made at the request of Department staff ("staff"), as described fully in Finding of Fact #3, below. Instead of increasing the 310,000 tons per year limit set in Condition #16.C of the amendment license to 325,000 tons per each year, the applicant proposes to accept, only in those years when a new base cell is constructed at Juniper Ridge, sufficient waste above the 310,000 tons annual limit to provide MSW for use as the protective "soft layer" required by 06-096 CMR 401.2.D(4)(a)(vii). The amount of MSW needed to provide the 4 to 5 feet deep soft layer will be included in the construction package required to be submitted for the Department's review and approval by Condition #15 of the amendment license. Maine Energy will work with Juniper

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE 5 SOLID WASTE ORDER
 PLANNING OFFICE)
 OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)
 JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)
 CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)
 #S-020700-WD-W-M)
 (APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS)) MINOR REVISION

Ridge to schedule, to the extent possible, maintenance and/or outages at Maine Energy to take place in conjunction with the soft layer placement timelines at Juniper Ridge. The remaining provisions of Condition #16 of the amendment license will not be modified. Thus, the total amount of MSW that may be handled between Maine Energy and Juniper Ridge will be limited to the existing 310,000 tons per year plus the quantity calculated, and approved by the Department, to be necessary for the protective soft layer in a new landfill cell.

3. DEPARTMENT REVIEW OF THE APPLICATION

Staff comment that Maine Energy has limited its MSW acceptance rates to stay below the 310,000 tons per year limit established by the Department. Staff further comment that only 15% of the MSW bypass was verified by one of the WTE incinerators and the remaining balance is unallocated. Staff also comment that, as shown in the below table, the total MSW bypass amounts accepted both at PTL and Juniper Ridge have remained relatively constant since the amendment license was issued in 2004 with the 310,000 ton limit in effect, and Maine Energy completed its equipment upgrades. Staff further comment that the applicant originally requested that the limit be increased to 325,000 tons per year, primarily to address the improvements in boiler efficiency and availability at Maine Energy that allow Maine Energy to process and combust more MSW while bypassing fewer tons of MSW to Juniper Ridge.

Deleted: successfully managed

Deleted:

YEAR	total MSW bypass received at PTL (tons) ¹	total MSW bypass received at Juniper Ridge (tons) ²	total MSW bypass (tons)
2004	28,475	0	28,475
2005	18,224	2,035	20,259
2006	10,362	11,155	21,517
2007	15,271	7,620	22,891
2008	0 ³	21,426	21,426
2009	0	21,559	21,559

¹ A provision of the Schedule of Compliance dated October 26, 2006 between PTL, the Department and the Town of Hampden required PTL to cease accepting petrescible waste by June 1, 2007.

² Juniper Ridge is allowed to accept only MSW bypass originating in Maine.

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE 6 SOLID WASTE ORDER
 PLANNING OFFICE)
 OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)
 JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)
 CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)
 #S-020700-WD-W-M)
 (APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS)) MINOR REVISION

Staff have requested that the applicant use MSW bypass as a material for the soft layer in each new base cell because it is a waste stream licensed for disposal at JRL that meets the purpose of the soft layer when used in connection with placement of other acceptable materials such as fires chips. The purpose of the soft layer is to protect the primary liner and the leachate collection system from climatic effects, erosion, and physical damage to the liner and leachate collection layers. The applicant has used other licensed wastes including front-end process residue from the incinerators, ash, contaminated soils, and bark for the soft layer. Staff note that it is possible these wastes will cause problems with the leachate collection system around sump collection areas coupled with fines clogging certain geotextiles utilized in the leachate collection system. Staff recommend that MSW bypass accepted within license conditions be a source of waste used in the soft layer at Juniper Ridge because at other secure landfills in Maine MSW has been found by staff to be suitable material for the soft layer provided that the Construction Quality Assurance Plan (COA) and/or Operations Manual requires placement practices that identify objects that may damage the liner and/or leachate collection system. The MSW Juniper Ridge is licensed to accept is MSW bypass from the 4 Maine incinerators. Landfill cells are constructed during the summer construction season, which is also the period when the Maine incinerators receive the most MSW. In addition to MSW bypass typically available, Staff recommends that CWS schedule the delivery of the cubic yardage of MSW from its Maine transfer stations to Juniper Ridge up to 5,000 tons, in each new base cell. A calculation of the cubic yardage available from bypass, and its use in connection with all other materials proposed to be used for placement of the soft layer, should be included in the design package for each cell required by Condition #15 of the amendment license, and that amount would be licensed as part of the approval for construction of the cell. The 5,000 tons of MSW for each cell's soft layer would be separate and excluded from the 310,000 ton per year limit specified in Condition #16.C of the amendment license.

The Department finds that the intent of the 310,000 tons per year limit was, in part, to address the possibility that providing Juniper Ridge with approval to accept bypassed MSW might result in Maine Energy accepting more MSW than it could process and incinerate, resulting in an automatic, ongoing bypass of MSW to Juniper Ridge, and, within this limit, a pattern of ongoing bypass has occurred, thus proving that a limit is necessary. However, the Department also finds that MSW is a viable waste for use in the protective soft layer required by 06-096 CMR 401.2.D(4)(a)(vii) when used in connection with other acceptable

- Deleted: much as possible
- Deleted: the
- Deleted: best
- Deleted: because the wastes are either (1) too coarse and will allow finer material from the wastes disposed after the soft layer placement to sift down and "blind" the soft layer by filling all the voids, which will hinder leachate movement into the leachate collection system, or (2) the wastes themselves contain a large amount of fine mat ... [1]
- Deleted: the primary
- Deleted: the best
- Deleted: suitable
- Deleted: C
- Formatted: Font: Times New
- Deleted: Q
- Formatted: Font: Times New
- Deleted: A
- Formatted: Font: Times New
- Formatted: Font: Times New
- Formatted: Font: Times New
- Deleted: LCS
- Formatted: Font: Times New
- Deleted: only
- Deleted: However,
- Deleted: I
- Deleted: Therefore, the incinera ... [2]
- Deleted: The incinerators are ... [3]
- Deleted: calculated to be necess ... [4]
- Deleted: needed
- Deleted: amount
- Deleted: the 310,000
- Deleted: has proven to be workable.
- Deleted: ha
- Deleted: proven to be the best
- Deleted: 2290037.1

132

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE	7	SOLID WASTE ORDER
PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

materials such as tire chips, and that MSW bypass can be used as the soft layer at Juniper Ridge. The Department therefore finds that the applicant will include a calculation of the cubic yardage of MSW bypass and other acceptable materials needed to cover each newly constructed cell with 4 to 5 feet of waste in the design package application for each cell submitted to demonstrate compliance with Condition #15 of the amendment license. All Department approvals for construction of new cells will include approval for the placement of the specific cubic yardage of MSW needed for an adequate soft layer; this cubic yardage, up to 7,000 yards for each new cell, will be separate and excluded from the 310,000 tons per year limit on MSW placed on Maine Energy and Juniper Ridge by Condition #16.C of the amendment license.

Deleted: should
Deleted:

4. CELL 6 SOFT LAYER

Staff comment that the applicant has just completed construction of cell 6 of Juniper Ridge. At the request of staff, CWS has provided a calculation of the cubic yardage of MSW bypass needed for the soft layer in cell 6; the cell is approximately 4 acres in size, and thus 31,400 cubic yards of MSW bypass would be needed for a 5 foot thick soft layer.

Deleted:
Deleted: The Department further finds that the amount of MSW bypass used for the soft layer in each cell constructed will be documented separately in the annual report, and will not be included in the 310,000 tons per year limit, although the Department expects CWS, to the extent possible, to schedule maintenance and/or outages at Maine Energy to take place in conjunction with the soft layer placement timelines at Juniper Ridge.

The Department finds that the applicant may use not more than 31,440 cubic yards of Maine-generated MSW bypass for the soft layer in cell 6; this amount of MSW bypass will not be included in the 310,000 ton limit for 2010.

MSW used in soft layer for future base cells will be limited to: 1) verified MSW bypass available from Maine's incinerators during the period requiring placement of soft layer; and 2) 7,000 cubic yards of MSW bypass that would not count toward the 310,000 ton limit. The applicant will incorporate the use of other acceptable materials needed to cover each newly constructed cell with 4 to 5 feet of waste in the design package application for each cell submitted to demonstrate compliance with Condition #15 of the amendment license. The Department anticipates that much of the MSW needed for the soft layer will be within the already supplied 310,000 tons of bypass MSW per year.

Deleted: ,
Deleted: ing

5. PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE APPLICATION

The Department received no requests for a public hearing or that the BEP assume jurisdiction over this project. The Department did receive requests for additional information and comments on the application from members of the Juniper Ridge

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE	8	SOLID WASTE ORDER
PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

Landfill Advisory Committee and from the City of Old Town. The questions and comments concerned the source(s) of the soft layer material, and the potential for an increase in the fill rate at Juniper Ridge. Staff have discussed the application at Juniper Ridge Landfill Advisory Committee meetings, including the purpose of the soft layer, why MSW is a good waste to use as the soft layer, and how the amount of bypass MSW approved for the soft layer can be accounted for separately from the 310,000 tons of MSW per year limit placed on Maine Energy and Juniper Ridge.

6. OTHER FACTS AND FINDINGS

The Department finds that all other findings made in the amendment license for the vertical increase of Juniper Ridge, and subsequent revisions to the license, remain unchanged.

BASED on the above findings of fact, the Department CONCLUDES the following:

The use of MSW bypass as the protective soft layer in newly constructed cells of the Juniper Ridge Landfill as proposed by the applicant will not pollute any water of the state, contaminate the ambient air, constitute a hazard to the health or welfare, or create a nuisance.

THEREFORE, the Department APPROVES the above noted application of THE STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE PLANNING OFFICE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS, and all applicable standards and regulations:

1. The Standard Conditions of Approval, a copy attached as Appendix A.
2. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, or part thereof, of this license shall not affect the remainder of the provision or any other provisions. This license shall be construed and enforced in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision or part thereof had been omitted.
3. The applicant shall include a calculation of the cubic yardage of MSW bypass and other acceptable materials needed to cover each newly constructed cell with 4 to 5 feet of waste in the design package application for each cell submitted to demonstrate compliance with Condition #15 of the amendment license. The design package must also include a CQA Plan and/or Operations Manual to

Deleted: 2290037.1

STATE OF MAINE, ACTING THROUGH THE STATE	9	SOLID WASTE ORDER
PLANNING OFFICE)	
OLD TOWN, PENOBSCOT COUNTY, MAINE)	
JUNIPER RIDGE LANDFILL)	
CHANGE IN MSW BYPASS LIMIT)	
#S-020700-WD-W-M)	
(APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS))	MINOR REVISION

demonstrate that the placement practices will identify and remove objects that may damage the liner and/or LCS.

4. The amount of verified MSW bypass, up to 7,000 cubic yards or 5,000 tons, used for the soft layer in each base cell constructed, including cell 6, will be documented separately in the annual report, and will not be included in the 310,000 tons per year limit.
5. All other Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Conditions remain as approved in DEP license # S-020700-WD-N-A, and subsequent revisions to the license, and are incorporated herein.

DONE AND DATED AT AUGUSTA, MAINE 10th DAY OF September, 2010.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

BY: /s/ Beth Nagusky
Beth Nagusky, Acting Commissioner

PLEASE NOTE THE ATTACHED SHEET FOR GUIDANCE ON APPEAL PROCEDURES.

Date of initial receipt of application: October 4, 2006
Date application accepted for processing: October 25, 2006

Date filed with the Board of Environmental Protection:

September 13, 2010

Deleted: 2290037.1

Page 6: [1] Deleted

glounder

5/24/2011 9:54:00 AM

because the wastes are either (1) too coarse and will allow finer material from the wastes disposed after the soft layer placement to sift down and "blind" the soft layer by filling all the voids, which will hinder leachate movement into the leachate collection system, or (2) the wastes themselves contain a large amount of fine material that they may inhibit leachate from getting into the leachate collection system,

Page 6: [2] Deleted

glounder

5/24/2011 10:15:00 AM

Therefore, the incinerators typically do not plan maintenance shutdowns during the summer or fall months.

Page 6: [3] Deleted

glounder

5/24/2011 10:15:00 AM

The incinerators are prohibited by their contracts with municipalities and other customers from calling a bypass event except during planned maintenance activities or unanticipated issues at the incinerator requiring a bypass.

Page 6: [4] Deleted

glounder

5/24/2011 10:20:00 AM

calculated to be necessary for the 4 to 5 feet of soft layer material needed

